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INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

This report sets forth the results of a year-long investigation into the
role of United States intelligence agencies with respect to alleged im-
proprieties by the government, representatives and agents of South
Korea in the United States.

The Committee’s investigation was conducted as a case study of the
activities of “friendly” intelligence services in the United States. The
South Korean case was selected because it was the subject of consid-
erable public attention and much information was already available.
The Committee is equally concerned about similar allegations that
have been made about the intelligence activities of some othér friendly
countries. The Committee will continue to seek to ascertain the extent
of the intelligence activities of other governments with whom the
United States has good relations as well as the U.S. Government’s re-
sponse to these activities. ,

The particular focus of the Committee, in examining the docu-
mentary record and interviewing key Executive Branch officials, has
been on the extent to which the U.S. Government knew of the Korean
government’s activities, the decisions that were made, and the resulting
actions which were or were not taken. The knowledge which the U.S.
Government had, most of it based upon intelligence reporting, was ex-
tensive, detailed, and current.! That knowledge ranged from simple
awareness as early as 1963 that the Korean intelligence service was
monitoring the activities of Korean residents in the United States,
to knowledge by 1971-73 that the Korean Government was attempting
by unlawful means to influence and sometimes intimidate hundreds of
Korean nationals who were living in this country. It included knowl-
edge in 1971, not only of plans to improperly influence Members of the:
U.S. Congress, but also of unlawful payments that had actually been
made that same year to members of the legislative branch to influence
U.S. legislative action. ‘

Most of this information was received by the United States intel-
ligence agencies as a by-product of their routine foreign intelligence:
work. None of it was obtained as the result of specific levied require-
ments, and no intelligence agent was every directed specifically to
focus on the subject in a comprehensive way. The U.S. Government
never set as an intelligence collection priority the question of whether
“friendly” foreign intelligence services were conducting activities
directed at officials or other residents of the United States. Although
much of the information received was disseminated to those compo-
nents of the U.S. Government with-law enforcement or foreign policy
responsibilities, some pieces of relevant information were never passed
on to anyone in a position to take action.- The intelligence agencies™
dissemination. of the information was unfocused,-haphazard; and'
without useful analysis. A R

i For pul‘bi'):s"és of thig 'rgpor;t,. thé éomzi:ltteé,ls assuléihéfthé,'.ggnaﬁility‘ o'f th‘e-h’mqm: :
sources whosé inférmation was being repdrted. A separate Committee study on the reliability-
of such information is now underway.
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At no time before 1975 was a full and complete “package” ever
presented to anyone within or outside the intelligence community re-
flecting the full scope, extent, and implications of Korean activity.
Although over several years much of the information was dissemi-
nated on an ad hoc basis to various levels and components of the
‘Government, it was not until 1975 that any senior accountable Fed-
eral official, though knowledgeable, addressed the problem in a com-
prehensive way., - , ' '
The Committee believes that some of the information which ‘was
distributed was of sufficient significance to have merited earlier action.
The Committee has examined the full record of the Executive Bratich
and:has concluded that prior to'1975 no effective action was taken by
anyone in authority to halt what was going on. Some eoncerned of’fgi
clals did bring the key issues to the attention of responsible Govern-
ment authorities; however; those notifications were not acted upon in
a manner commensurate with the magnitude of the activities involved.,
~ The Committee:has also investigated the question of whether there
was an intentional “cover-up” by Executive Branch officials, and we
have discovered no evidence to support such a conclusion. Viewed in

" the context of how the United States Government has generally han-
dled relations with friendly foreign intelligence services in the past,
the lack of effective and timely action is understandable, but we
believe that new policies and new procedures must be devised to in-
sure that this kind of problem does not recur.

This study did not address the question of the efficacy of U.S. coun-
terintelligence efforts against hostile intelligence services in the United
States. The recent indictment involving alleged Soviet intelligence
activities in the New York City area dramatizes the continued gravity

~of that problem, and the Committee will specifically report on both
the magnitude of the Soviet threat as well as the adequacy of the
U.S. response in due course. It is beyond question that the activities
of hostile intelligence services in the United Stites pose a more direct
threat to the security of our nation and an even greater infringement
on the liberties of our citizenry than do a few random, albeit intensive,
operations by the intelligence services of our friends and allies. In-
deed, it is the Committee’s view that the amount of attention and ve-
sources required to be dedicated to the threat posed by hostile intelli-
gence services could account for the lack of effective reaction in the
Korea case.

In the past, our counterintelligence effort has focused upon the
intelligerice services of our adversaries, not our friends and alliés.
Perhaps, as one counterintelligence officer put it, “We have enough
to do just trying to stay up with the KGB.” Whatever the reason. it
is clear that no means have yet been designed to prevent “friendly”
foreign intelligence services from acting in ways that have and still
could subvert our laws and subject our citizens to intimidation by
foréign powers. Our intelligence agencies do not systematically ascer-
tain the identities of and/or the assignments of ‘agents or intelligence
officers of “friendly” foreign governments who are in, or are coming
to, the United States in “cover” capacities. Moreover, in cases where
the United States Government becomes incidentally aware that such
an officer is in the United States to fulfill an operational, as opposéd
to a liaison function, no steps are taken to determine the nature of -

1
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that function unless there is some indication that he is violating United
States law. The U.S. intelligence community does not command suffi-
cient means, resources, or manpower to monitor the activities of
“friendly” intelligence agencies’ activities in the United States.
One of the key questions that must be answered is to what extent
the United States Government should knowingly permit any foreign
intelligence officers to conduct operations in the United States. The
answer to this basic question is in part answered by our own need to
conduct intelligence.operations abroad. If the United States Govern-
ment arrests or expels foreign intelligence officers or agents, then it
risks foreign retaliation against U.S. intelligence operatives, inno-
cent, U.S. citizens, or the foreign policy interests of the United States.
As the situation now stands, there are no formal rules, no written
agreements, and no definitive limitations governing the conduct of
intelligence services. Perhaps it cannot be otherwise. But, there must
be a recognition that the issues and practices revealed by the Korean
case have not been resolved, and unless they are, other cases of abuse
will surely arise. : : ‘ . S



FINDINGS OF FACT

Within weeks after this investigation began, it became apparent that
there were crucial issues to be dealt with which went beyond the ques-
tion of when the U.S. intelligence community first became aware that

. agents of the South Korean intelligence service (KCIA) were en-
gaged in efforts to improperly influence the U.S. Congress. A review
of all available U.S. intelligence reports concerning the KCIA made
clear that KCIA officials were “operational” in the United States as
early as 1963, just two years after the KCIA was formed. At that
time, the Department of State received a report from one of the in-
telligence agencies that KCIA officers had been directed to monitor
the activities of Korean residents in Los Angeles and to solicit their
support for the government of Pak Chung-hi. There is no evidence
that any action-was taken by any State Department official, nor was
any concern expressed, at that time. :

1t is reasonable to assume that there would be public acceptance of
the stationing of foreign intelligence officers in the United States for
the purpose of liason with our own intelligence services to exchange
information of mutual benefit. Accordingly, the 1963 intelligence re-
ports raised for the Committee the immediate question of -precisely
what the practices are. ' : . i

1. The U.S. Government is not usually notified by most foreign gov-
ernments when “friendly” foreign intelligence officers aré assigned
here. Although our own intelligence ageéncies are aware of who their
own liaison counterpart is, neither U.S. intelligence, nor any other
part of the United States Government, ever receives routine notifica-

tion of all “friendly” foreign intelligence officers who are assigned to

embassies or missions in ‘this country. Moreover, in those cases where
our own intelligence liaison officers might incidéntally become aware
of the identities of “friendly” intelligence officers who are stationed
in the United States, the U.S. Government is not usually informed,
nor does the United States inquire, as to the nature of their duties

and mission. : ) ' , A

Routine accreditation forms are filled out by all foreign diplomats
who are assigned here, but these forms contain no questions, nor any
information, about whéther intelligence functions are among their
duties. Indeed, it appears that the policy question of whether such
notification should be required has never been dispositively addressed
by the Executive Branch. ‘

9. The question has not been formally addressed, whether foreign
governments should be permitted to perform intelligence operations in
the United States. The Committee’s study has revealed that the intel-
ligence function is assumed. The issue of not permitting intelligence
activities is not considered. In the words of one U.S. official respon-
sible for accrediting foreign diplomats, “I am so conditioned to the
pervasiveness of our own intelligence operations overseas, that I

(5)
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would never presume to suggest that other countries shouldn’t be able
to perform a similar function in this country.” -

On at least two occasions, the Department of State has addressed
the question of whether persons accredited as foreign diplomats should
be permitted to engage in other nondiplomatic activities. For in-
stance, several years ago, the Department was concerned about ac-
credited embassy personnel devoting substantial portions of their

. time to nondiplomatic affairs such as attendance at American univer-
sities or participation in international organizations such as the In-
ternational Monetary Fund. At that time, the Department of State
circulated a “note” to all foreign missions which reminded foreign
* governments that one of the “criteria” for accreditation was a require-
. ment that each diplomatic officer “devote his official activities fulltime
_to diplomatic duties.” The “note” continued:

* ** [T]he Department has learned of instances of per-
sons who, although accredited as diplomatic officers, are prin-
cipally, if not solely, performing duties under contract at or
appointment with one of the international organizations with
headquarters in Washington * * * [T]he Department of
State views such arrangements as necessarily collateral-and
subordinate to the member’s diplomatic duties. Therefore,
should the Department learn in the future of further in-
stances where an accredited diplomat is performing duties
under a full-time contract or appointment with an inter-
national organization, or is about to be converted to such

* status, the mission will be expected to return all credentials
of that diplomatic officer to the Department of State, and that

. officer’s name will be deleted from the Diplomatic List.

- The Department wishes again to-stress the importance
placed on the performance of traditional and accepted diplo-
matic functions by a diplomatic officer while in the United

~ States and to make clear that it will continue to be unable to

: consider for accreditation any person who is, or, during: as-
.. signment in the United States, will be a student or trainee at
.. or with any college, university, vocational school, military in-

., ‘Stitution, or private or governmental foundation, or engaged

* In any other pursuit inconsistent with regular and accepted

- diplomatic functions. In the past some governments have se-
lected officials for assignment to the United States who, fol-
lowing arrival and subsequent accreditation as diplomats by
the Department of State, have entered upon an intergovern-

* mental military training course or been assigned at a.private

- research institution. This practice is unacceptable. Each mis-
sion should notify the Department whenever any of its officers
terminates diplomatic duties to engage in academic pursuits
and should at that.time return appropriate credentials.

.. No note has ever been issued on the subject of whether accredited
diplomats may be engaged in intelligence activities in this country.

3. The permissible limits of lawful foreign diplomatic lobbying of
"Members of the Congress has never been set forth. The following
exchange between the Senate Foreign Relations Committee and the
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Department of State occurred during hearings on ratification of the
Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations in 1965:

Question. A diplomatic agent is to deal only with the foreign
ministry or the head of state of the country of his mission.
Houw strictly s this observed? To what extent do diplomatic
agents try to influence the press, Members of Congress, and
industrial leaders awithout going  through the State
Department?

Answer. It has long been established that as a general rule
diplomatic officers should conduct all official business with or
through the ministry of foreign affairs, exept as may have
been otherwise agreed. .

Any case of flagrant breach of normal diplomatic practice
by obviously improper contacts is dealt with by the Depart-
ment by making the Department’s disapproval known to the
diplomatic mission concerned. .

Many diplomatic missions have press attachés and infor-
mation officers whose principal duty is to deal with the news
media. The Department considers that this is a proper diplo-
matic function, so long as the mission does not make state-
ments or disseminate political propaganda which is
objectionable to the United States. .

- The Department is, of course, not fully informed of the
nature and substance of all discussions concerning matters
of policy which diplomatic officers have with Members of the
Congress and with industrial leaders. Such direct contacts.
as distinct from contacts by nondiplomatic representatives
of foreign governments, have not occasioned any significant
complaint. . :

A proposal was made by State Department officials to circularize a
“diplomatic note” on the question in 1970, partially as the result of
“improper” ‘lobbying by South Korea. A draft “note”, containing a
warning that activities by foreign diplomats or consular officers in-
tended to influence congressional deliberations on matters in which
their government has a financial or other beneficial interest would be
unacceptable to the United States was not approved by the State De-
partment because of the “difficulty in arriving at an agreed text and
the doubts of manv desks on the wisdom of an indiscriminate approach
to all embassies.” Instead. it was conclnded by State Department offi-
cials that questionable activities would continue to be dealt with on
an individual basis. How those activities were defined or dealt with in
the Korean case will be discussed in greater detail below.

4. The absence of any precise delineation of what “friendly” foreign
intelligence services may and may 1ot do within the United States has
resulted in a lack of clarity with respect to jurisdictional responsibili-
ties of individual U.S. Government agencies. This in twrn has resulted
in ineffective coverage of “friendly” foreign intelligence service
activities. ‘ o

Officials of the Department of State and U.S. intelligence agencies
maintain that the Federal Bureau of Investigation has primaryv juris-
diction over the activities of foreign intelligence services within the
United States. The FBI in turn has maintained that it is their basic

20-935—78——2
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policy “to conduct investigations only in instances where we receive
allegations indicating an individual representing a foreign nation is
engaging in activities in violation of our laws or otherwise constitutes
a security menace.” The State Department apparently presumed that
the KCIA’s activities in Los Angeles in 1963 would not have fallen
into either category.

In 1954 the FBI did acknowledge that the presence of “friendly”
foreign intelligence services in the United States posed potential prob-
lems; however, the concern which was expressed by the Bureau at
that time focused primarily upon the potential threat to the U.S. se-
curity posed by possible hostile infiltration by a “friendly” intelligence
service. Within the somewhat narrow context of that concern, the FBI
in 1954 urged the Department of State and U.S. intelligence agencies
to notify the Bureau “when information is received that an intelli-

ence representative of a foreign government is coming to the United
tates.” The Bureau’s request went on to state :

.We would like to be advised in the.event any agency sets up
a liaison arrangement with such an intelligence representative
and to be furnished with brief details of his approved ac-
tivity. This information is needed in order to guide this Bu-
reau in discharging its responsibilities and, at the same time,
it will enable us to advise the appropriate agency in the event
information is received that the intelligence representative
is acting outside the scope of his approved activity. Similarly,
any information concerning the activities of these intelligence
representatives coming to the attention of any agency which
would appear to be outside the scope of their prescribed ac-
tivity should be brought to the attention of this Bureau. These
data will assist us in eliminating unnecessary inquiries and in
concentrating on those matters of this type which merit close
attention.
We would like to have this information with respect to
* intelligence representatives now in the United States and.
_on a continuing basis, with respect to future arrivals. Of
_course, we desire to continue to be furnished data concerning
" suspected intelligence representatives who arrive and with
whom no working arrangement exists. '

The Committee has examined the notifications which were received
by the FBI with respect to South Korean intelligence officers. Most
cf those notifications related to Korean intelligence officials who were
in the United States on official visits or as guests of the U.S. Govern-
ment. In 1970 one of the U.S. intelligence agencies supplied the Bu-
reau with a complete list of all South Korean intelligence officers who
were then known to be in the United States, together with their “cover”
designations. There is no indication that the Bureau ever took any
action upon receipt of the list. We have found no evidence that any
inquiry was undertaken to determine whether any of the intelligence
officers on the list were acting “outside the scope of (their) approved
activities.” Most significantly, the Committee has found there is no
written policy, guideline, rule or requirement available to the FBI
or any other U.S. authority, which articulates what is and what is not
considered to be “approved activity.”
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With respect to the question of whether the FBI should conduct an
investigation to determine the activities of foreléu‘mtelhgen(_:e officers
stationed within the United States, Bureau officials have informed
the Committee:

(a) Such an undertaking would be practically impossible
because of the numbers involved. As one official observed. “We
have enough to do just trying to stay up with the KGB.”

(b) Such an undertaking would be an exercise in futility
since no resultant action could or would be taken. According
to the Bureau, for foreign policy reasons, it is difficult to limit
visas even for known officers of the KGB.

Finally, although the Department of Justice administers a criminal
statute requiring that a registration statement be filed by any person
who “has received instruction or assignment in, the espionage, coun-
terespionage, or sabotage service or tactics of a government of a for-
eien country”, the Justice Department is not unusually notified (nor
has it ever asked to be notified) about the presence of foreign intelli-
gence officers in the United States.

5. The Committee has also determined that intelligence require-
ments processes do not include directions to U.8. intelligence agencies
to determine the identities and assignments of “friendly” foreign n-
telligence officers who are in or coming to the United States. Accord-
ingly, any information which becomes known to U.S. intelligence and
thereafter to other agencies of the United States, is available only be-
cause it might be voluntarily supplied in addition to other U.S. for-
eign intelligence assignments. The Committee learned that in the South
Korean case, even after specific information about KCIA illegal lob-
bying was received, no intelligence instructions were ever issued to
develop additional intelligence on the same subject. In the words of
one former overseas intelligence officer “my reports met with absolute
silence.” : :

6. Extensive specific information about KCIA operations being di-
rected against South K oreans living in the United States came to the
attention of U.S. intelligence agencies between 1971 and 1973 and was
reported by those agencies to the Department of State. Although the
information received in 1963 about KCIA monitoring activities in
Tos Angeles may have appeared to U.S. officials to have been rather
benign, it was clear by 1971 that the KCIA had set out to effectively
impede opposition to the Pak regime by South Koreans living in the
United States. U.S. intelligence learned in early 1971 of KCIA plans
to disrupt and destroy the National Association of Overseas Residents,
an anti-Pak organization in the United States. When Kim Tae-Chung,
the leading South Korean opposition candidate, was planning to visit
the United States that year, U.S. intelligence learned of KCIA plans
to investigate all his activities and to block his meetings with U.S.
officials. All of this information was reported to the Department of
State. Notwithstanding the KCIA’s efforts, Kim was officially re-
ceived by the Secretary of State “to demonstrate an evenhanded U.S.

- Government policy toward the Korean elections,” but there is no evi-
dence that any action was taken by the United States to bring the
~ disruptive operations to a halt.
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By mid-1973 U.S. intelligence was ‘aware that the KCIA’s opera-
tions in the United States had intensified to the point where'the KCIA
was trying to block anti-Pak demonstrations by all possible means.
Korean associations were to be penetrated, manipulated and weakened
by the KCIA, and demonstrators were to be intimidated. When Kimi
planned a return trip to the United States the KCIA even considered
a plan to use criminals in the United States to kill him. This pl;m
was reported by U.S. intelligence to the Department of State, which
by then was receiving its own firsthand accounts of KCIA harrass-
ment from Korean victims. News accounts of some of these incidents
were appearing in the press, and finally, in mid-June of 1973, a high-
ranking Korean Embassy official, Lee Jai-Hyon, resigned and sought
U.S. permission to reside permanently in the United States. Lee’s res-
ignation received widespread publicity and he was quoted in the. press
as confirming that “KCIA operatives work out of the embassy and
South Korean consulates across the United States and conduct illegal
surveillance and intimidation operations against Korean residents
here.”

7. The first significant action taken by the U.S. Government with
respect to reports of KOIA harrassment occurred in August 1973, Al-
though complaints had been made earlier by the Director of Korean
Affairs in the Department of State to the Korean Ambassador and
the KCIA station chief in Washington, including an expression of
concern for the safety of Kim Tae-Chung, the KCIA’s operations con-
tinued unabated. Finally, in August, at the urging of the Department
of State, an FBI investigation was begun, official protests about the
size and activities of the KCTA mission in the United States were
lodged with the South Korean government, and State Department
officials persnaded the South Korean government to recall their KCIA
station chief from Washington. The Korean Ambassador to the United
States was told by the Under Secretary of State that the KCIA mis-
sion in this country “can have one and only one function, and that
is liaison with our intelligence community.”

The FBI’s investigation did not result in prosecution, and it is un-
clear what the purpose of the investigation was intended to be. FBI
files reflect that investigators were instructed “to determine if per-
sons residing in the United States are carrying out activities on behalf
of the South Korean government which would be in violation of the
Foreign Agents Registration Act.” State Department records indi-
cate-that the Department’s officers were not necessarily seeking “the
kind of evidence necessary for prosecution in court,” but “enough in-
formation upon which we can draw s reasonable conclusion regard-
ing ROK CIA activities in the United States.” During consultations
between representatives of the FBI and the Department of State. the
Burean had confirmed that it had had “strong reasons to conclude
that the ROK CIA is indeed involved in efforts to intimidate and
harrass Korean citizens in the United States, although evidence, as
against allegations, is not easy to obtain.” According to state Depart-
ment memoranda of their consultations with the FBI, the Bureau was
“sensitive to the fact that a foreign government is involved, and they
are also concerned about questioning as to their justification for con-
ducting such an investigation. As a result they have been proceeding
rather cautiously and on a limited basis, utilizing as grounds for their
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investigation the Foreign Agent Registration Act, which restricts
them to the nondiplomatic area.” N

8. The FBI's investigation of KCIA harrassment was limited, did
not include debriefing a key prospective witness, and was conducted
without the benefit of all available intelligence information.

The FBI's investigation, which did add some additional details of
harrassment and disruption at particular demonstrations, as well as
confirmation by FBI sources of KCIA involvement, was as limitect
and as cantious as the State Department understood it to be. When the
investigation was begun, all I'BI field offices were instructed to be
guided by the principle that “[the] State Department has primary
responsibility for policing the activities of South Korean diplomats
in this instance and it is not desired that we undertake massive investi-
gations of South Korean diplomats unless such appears absolutely
necessary.”

Not only did the FBI not “undertake massive investigations of
South Kotean diplomats,” but the investigative record reflects that
at no point did the FBI investigate any South Korean diplomat. FBI
Headquarters also instructed its field offices that “In the event it
becormes desirable that direct investigation of an individual diplomat
be instituted, Bureau (Headquarters) should be expeditiously advised
so that State Department clearance for such an investigation may be
initiated.” No such clearance was ever recommended or sought.

Tt is unclear to the Committee what kind of information might have
persuaded the Bureau that such investigations were “aﬁsolutely
necessary.” It is not unreasonable to presume that the Bureau might
have had such information in hand if they had questioned Lee Jai-
Hyon, who said he had actually been present at meetings in the
Korean Embassy when the disruption plans were being discussed by
officers of the KCIA, and who could, therefore, have provided first-
hand evidence of what he had learned. Yet, the investigative reports
reveal that Lee, though available, was not intérviewed. This investi-
gative omission is of even greater significance in view of the fact that
it later became clear that Lee said he had detailed firsthand knowledge
about not only the KCIA’s disruptive operations, but their lobbying
activities as well. In fact, when Lee testified before the House Sub-
committee on International Organizations in 1975, he provided what
he said were details of a comprehensive nine-point KCIA program
“to mute criticism of [President Pak’s] totalitarianism and to buy
supporters in the United States.” He described the KCIA’s plans:

To seduce and, if possible, buy off American leaders—par-
* ticular in Congress—who have had any kind of close personal
contacts with Korea through the Korean war or business.

i *

To regiment Korean communities in the United States
by infiltrating with front men or undercover agents the
established Korean residents’ associations and by creating
new ones where such associations have not yet been orga-
nized. The purpose was to control and manipulate the Korean
communities through the planted officers of such organiza-
tions, to silence criticism of (President) Pak’s repressive rule
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by singling out and intimidating dissident menibers aid fo
stage in the name of associations falsified campaigns of

. Korean residents’ total support for (President) Pak before
the eyes of the U.S. Government and people; * * *,

* . * * * s

To intimidate “uncooperative” Korean residents in the
United States through their families, relatives and close
friends in Korea, to silence dissidents and to make silent ones
more “cooperative.” ' '

All of this information would probably have been-available to the
FBI if they had questioned Lee in 1973. Yet, he was not interviewed
during the FBI’s investigation. FBI files contain no record which
‘would account for this investigative omission, and the FBI agent who
directed the.investigation is dead. '

It is also reasonable to assume that the Bureau would have deter-
mined that investigations of South Korean diplomats were necessary
if it had had all the intelligence which had been provided by U.S.
intelligence to the Department of State during 1971 and 1972. As
noted above, that information made clear the KCIA’s plans to intimi-
date South Koreans living in the United States, and additional intel-
ligence on the same subject was sent to the Department of State the
following year. Some of that new intelligence was not forwarded to
the FBI either by the intelligence agencies or by the Department of
State when it was first received. Nor was information pulled together
and sent to the Bureau in 1973, when the KCIA investigation was
begun. It is the Committee’s view that the FBI was not supplied with
substantial information which might have convinced the Bureau of
the need for a more comprehensive investigation than was actually
undertaken. .

9. Although ‘the. Department of State successfully persuaded the
South Korean government to recall the KCIA chief from Washington
in late 1973, the harrassment operations apparently continued.

As noted above, State Department officers pushed for an investiga-
tion not necessarily for prosecutive evidence, but because they needed
to have “enough information upon which we can draw a reasonable
conclusion regarding ROK CTIA activities in the United States.” Pro-
tests to the Korean Embassy at the working level had proven unsuc-
cessful, and it had become clear by mid-June 1973 that more forceful
action was required. It is possible that the additional information
produced by the FBI’s investigation provided enough additional data
to lead to the “reasonable conclusion” sought, so that senior State
Department officials could be persuaded of the urgency of the situa-
tion. At any rate, formal action was taken at the end of August
1973 when the Under Secretary of State successfuly urged the Korean
Ambassador to send home the KCIA station chief from Washington.
It is unclear what the effect of this action was. Shortly thereafter,
U.S. intelligence learned, and reported to the Department of State,
that in the weeks and months following Lee Jai-Hyon’s widely
publicized resignation in June 1973, KCIA officers in Washington had
been directed to (1) deny the allegations of KCIA harrassment, (2)
carry on their activities more secretly so there would be no recurrence’
of a Lee Jai-Hyon affair, and (8) lower their profile by coopting other
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Korean officials to do the necessary “contact work” with Korean na-
tionals. At the bottom of one of these intelligence reports, a U.S.
intelligence officer noted, “Apparently KCIA won’t desist from opera-
tions among Korean nationals in_the U.S. but is becoming more
sophisticated.” Indeed, two years later, U.S. intelligence was again
reporting KCIA plans to monitor anti-Pak demonstrations 1n the
United States, and to manipulate the political activities of Korean
residents here.

10. A three-month FBI énvestigatz’on in 1971, which was prompted
by reports of improper Korean lobbying, was limited in scope and was
conducted without the benefit of all available intelligence information.

Tn 1971, the Department of Justice directed the FBI to undertake an
investigation to determine whether Tongsun Park and/or an organi-
zation called Radio Of Free Asia (ROFA) was acting in violation of
the provisions of the Foreign Agents Registration Act. The invest1-
gation was initiated at the urging of the Department of State which
forwarded information to support their “strong suspicions concerning
certain of the key Koreans involved (in ROFA), the organization’s
link to the ROK CIA, and the possibility that it and its parent orga-
nization, the Korean Cultural and Freedom Foundation. are covers
for ROK, lobbying efforts in the United States.” The FBI’s investiga-
tion, which consisted of a review of publicly available records and bio-
graphical data on a few of the principals, and an interview of the head
of ROFA, was closed in less than three months for lack of evidence.
The closing of the investigation was approved by Acting Attorney
General Kleindienst in March 1972, based upon recommendations he
received from the Justice Department’s Internal Security Division.
The “paper record” reflects that the closing was handled in routine
bureaucratic fashion, and the Committee has discovered no evidence
to the contrary.

Some of the information which had been forwarded to the Depart-
ment of Justice by the Department of State never reached the FBI.
Since much of the State Department’s information was based upon
intelligence reports, a decision was agreed upon whereby one of the
intelligence agencies would prepare an intelligence summary and trans-
mit their summary directly to the FBI. However, this procedure failed
to take two important factors into account:

(a) The State Department had sent the Justice Department
some of their own information which had not come from any
of the intelligence agencies. That information was not in-
cluded in the summary which one of the intelligence agencies
agreed to prepare, and it never reached the FBI. Perhaps the
most crucial State Department data which never reached the
Bureau was the following information which was in the origi-
nal State Department submission to the Department of
Justice: :

We know for a fact that Pak (Ton Sun) offered to con-
tribute to the campaign funds of several Congressmen,
(coincidentally just before the supplemental MAP ap-
propriation was submitted to the Hill), and have sus-
picions that he has been involved in many other irregu-
larities as a lobbyist.
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(b) The State Department’s submission had included in-
formation based on intelligerice generated by an intelligence
agency other than the one which was.preparing the summary.
The other intelligence agency’s information was not included

- in the intelligence summary and did not reach the FBI. This
information stated : : -

Pak Ton Sun, member of the Korean Cultural and Free-

dom Foundation, was believed to be a member of the

ROK CIA which “has a club called the Georgetown

Club' in Washington, D.C.” * * * [T]he Club served

as a “front” to channel campaign funds to Congressmen.

+ Although the intelligence summary which was forwarded by the in-
- telligence agency to the FBI reported that the South Korean govern-
ment had formulated, but had later “tabled” a plan which would have
given Tongsun Park control over KXCIA lobbying ‘activities in the
United State, it did not reveal that U.S. intelligence actually had
precise knowledge of the plan itself, containing considerable detail
regarding implementation, including the proposed creation of an-osten-
sibly legitimate organization in the United States comprised of speci-
fically 1dentified Members of the House and Senate. Moreover, the
-summary did not contain known information about the .relationship
-between Tongsun Park, the KCIA, and individual high-level officials
of the South Korean government. The Department of State was not
aware of the extent of detail which U.S. intelligence had with respect
to the plan; and even though State had received some information
about Park’s KCIA and South Korean government relationships, the
intelligence agency was not asked by State to'include that information
in the summary which was being prepared for the FBI. Nor was the
information volunteered to the FBI by the intelligence agency pre-
paring the summary. Indeed, officials of the agency who were pre-
paring the summary were not told that the FBI investigation would
include the activities of Tongsun Park and Korean lobbying in the
United States. B
. Some officials of the intelligence agency which prepared the sum-
mary ‘were receiving more specific information-about improper lobby-
ing by South Korea, the KCTA and Tongsun Park. These reports oc-
curred after the original Park.lobbying plan had supposedly been
tabled. The more detailed information was forwarded by those offi-
cials to FBI Headquarters in three intelligence reports (separate from
the summary) during the same period that the summary was being
prepared; however, FBI Headquarters did not forward those reports
to-the Bureau .investigators then conducting the inquiry. Those absent
reports reflected that: ’

(a) Tongsun Park was definitely under the direction of

the KCTA. : C o :
(b) A named Member of the House of Representatives had

recommended to President Pak that congressional lobbying

%ffo;ts in the United States should be handled by Tongsun
ark. Ce :

. (c) President Pak had agreed to have Tongsun Park act as

Intermediary “in the rice deal.” Park’s commission was ex-
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pected to be about one million dollars, about half-of which
was to be used for Korean lobbying in the United States.

(d) Some of Tongsun Park’s commission was paid by Park
to a named Member of the House of Representatives.

(e) The same named Member of the House of Represen-
tatives had solicited campaign funds from President Pak.

(£) T'wo named staff employees of the House of Representa-
tives were connected with the KCTA. o ,

(g) Korean lobbying activities in the United States-had
included an alleged donation of several hundred thousand
dollars to the Democratic Party in the 1968 election.?

The decision by FBI Headquarters not to use the above informa-
tion in its investigation—indeed its decision not even to communicate
it to its own investigators—was made, according to the FBI, at the
urging of a subordinate officer at the intelligence agency which gen-
erated the information. Notations in FBI files reflect that that intel-
ligence officer told his counterpart at the FBI that the information
could be disseminated only to Attorney General John Mitchell and
Special Assistant to the President for National Security Affairs,
Henry Kissinger, and that “sensitive sources [are] such that no in-
quiries whatsoever may be made on the basis of information fur-
nished.”® The intelligence officer has confirmed that his superiors did
place a limitation on distribution, but has said that neither he nor
anyone else at his agency restricted investigative use. He maintained
‘that such investigative restrictions are customarily handled, where
necessary, by limitations specified in the body of the disseminated in-
telligence report as opposed to being handled informally on the tele-
phone, as the Bureau files notations reflect was done in this case.
Whether or not such a restriction was discussed, the réports them-
selves were distributed to both Attorney General Mitchell and Dr.
Kissinger. The reports contained the FBI Director’s statement that
no investigation was being conducted because the originating intel-
ligence agency “has advised that ‘the source of its information is
extremely sensitive and such as to preclude any investigation what-
soever.” Dr. Kissinger told the Committee that he does not recall
‘seeing any of the three reports which were sent to him. Mr. Mitchell
recalls only the one report which was sent to him which mentioned
congressional staff employees, and he recalls bringing that matter to
the attention of the Speaker of the House. The Committee has been
unable to identify anyone on the staffs of either Dr. Kissinger or Mr.
Mitchell who might have seen the reports. The difficulty of determin-
ing who actually saw the reports is compounded by the fact that most
of the distributed reports which were actually delivered to other agen-

“ 2 A few years later, U.S. intelligence also learned that the KCIA was investigating an
unconfirmed” report said to be circulating in Washington about an alleged substantial
Korean contribution to the 1968 Democratic presidential campaign, and the possibility
that persons in the Republican Party might use the information in retribution when the
‘Watergate investigation was finished. Tongsun Park has testified that he contributed
$5.000 or $10,000 to _the late Senator Humphrey’s presidential primary campaign in 1972
an’%h$20,0?{) todthe I:éxbont"s presidential campaign the same year. !
ese alleged con utions are not within the jurisdicti
thgr;lgf]ore I]‘;?t ?ee;lhinveiltilgate(zi as a part of this jstudv. on of this Committee and havg
e subject of how the need for secrecy sometimes operates as an im -
tive law enforcement will be addressed in detail in a sgparate Committggdxgg)%ﬁ.m effec
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cies and officials, and which might corntain notations indicating who
might have read them, cannot now be located* - . )
Two other reports which were distributed containing equally sig-
nificant information, which were based upon information received by
. FBI Headquarters from another intelligence agency, similarly cannot
be located. Copies of those reports which were retained by the FBI
contain information reported in 1971 that: :

- 1. A named Member of the House of Representatives and
a named member of his staff had been cooperating with the
KCIA, and the Congressman had received “payoffs” for as-
sisting the Korean government before a’ House committee.

. 2. A person whom the KXCIA suspected was on-President
Nixon’s campaign staff was involved in-attempting to nego--
tiate a secret foreign aid grant with the government of Korea

. which was to be-handled outside ordinary congressional chan- "~
nels, and for which U.S. Government officials would receive
“kickbacks”, s '

‘Reports containing the information described in the first para-
graph .above were sent to Attorney General Mitchell and Dr. Kis-
singer. Reports concerning the alleged “kickback” negotiations were
sent to Attorney General Mitchell and Assistant Attorney General
.Robert C. Mardian. Neither of the reports was investigated,® and none
of the information was furnished to the FBI’s investigators who were
then conducting the inquiry which had been initiated by the Depart-
ment of State. Each of the reports contained FBI Director Hoover’s
representation that the Bureau was “precluded from instituting in-
vestigation based solely on information received from such sensitive
sources.” No.one reviewed that decision and, although Dr. Kissinger
recalled that he received the report about the Congressman, he assumed
that such a matter was the responsibility of the Attorney General, who,
he was aware, had received a duplicate copy of the report. Mr. Mit-
chell does not recall seeing either of the reports. Both Attorney Gen-
eral Mitchell and Assistant Attorney General Mardian have denied
that any of their decisions in the Korean case were prompted by a
concern that an investigation of any Korean matter would necessarily
also require an investigation of the alleged kickback negotiations in-
volving a purported Nixon campaign aide. e _

11. Substantial additional intelligence about improper Korean lob-
bying was reported in 1972. Much of this information was reported
to the Department of State, but none of it was brought to the atten-
tion of the FBI. ) :

+ Although the ‘Committee has examined the originating agencles’ coples of all reports
which were disseminated, twenty-three of the actual documents which were distributed to
U.S. policymakers about Korean activities are unaccounted for. The unexplained disap-
pearance of these highly classified memoranda, letters and reports has been brought to the
attention of the Attorney General and the Director of Central Intelligence by the Committee.

5 Mardian told the Committee the report looked like a “pure con”, job and ‘a hoax.”
A limited inquiry was undertakén by the FBI with respect to the alleged kickback only for
the purpose of further 1dent1fyin§: the individual described as being on the campaign staff.
That inquiry, which consisted only of an FBI file search, did not produce any information
indicating that ‘the individual was connected with the campaign (and the Committee has
no further information indicating that he was). The FBI's inquiry was requested by
Assistant Attorney General Mardian following a telephone conversation he had with
Attorney General Mitchell. According to FBI records, Mr. Mardian urged the Bureau to
gndertake the limited inquiry based on his oral request because protection of the source

must be afforded paramount consideration and he did not like the idea of paper contain-
ing material which might jeopardize the source floating around.”
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_ After the FBD’s investigation was closed in early 1972, U.S. intel-
ligence continued to report detailed information about what the Ko-
reans were doing. That information was current and reflected a va-
riety of plans, strategies, and activities designed to affect U.S. policy.
For example, intelligence reporting in the spring of 1972 described
Tongsun Park as President Pak’s personal representative in-arrang-
ing yice deals, identified the KCIA Director as personally handling
the rice transactions, and confirmed earlier réports that the purpose
of the arrangement was to raise funds for the KCIA. Moreover, in-
telligence reports at this time not only corroborated earlier reports
that the Korean government had contributed heavily to the Demo-
cratic Party in 1968, but also reflected that the Korean government
had now decided that they should be supporting the Republican Party.

By late 1972, U.S. intelligence became aware of the names of a
number of Congressmen and Senators that the Korean government
believed could be influenced. In addition, intelligence reports which
“were sent to Dr. Kissinger and to the Department of State discussed
a major, new Korean lobbying effort which was to be financed by
the KXCTA for the purpose of influencing Congress, the State Depart-
ment. the media, and Korean residents.® The reports also reflected
that Tongsun Park has been directed bv the KCIA to arrange for
particular named congressmen to visit Seoul, where they would be
interviewed and Korean newspapers would report their pro-Korean
views. At about this time, U.S. intelligence also reported that the
KCTA Director and other Korean officials were studying a proposal
which a named Member of the House of Representatives had made
to President Pak that a Korean-American civilian coordinating coun-
&l be established and that it be managed by Tongsun Park.

None of the above information was brought to the attention of
+he FBI.

19. Because there was no intelligence requirement levied for infor-
mation about Korean lobbying, the reporting process was on oceasion
incomplete and often without focus. Some intelligence reports were
sent to the Department of State. some to the FBI. some to the National
Security Council. and some to various combinations of these compo-
-ments. On one occasion, a decision was made that significant infor-
mation should not be reported to U.S. officials who micht have been
.able to take responsible action. In 1971, overseas intelligence officers
“informed their headquarters that the American Ambassador had been
.askine for specific information about South Korean lobbying activi-
ties. The officers had precisely that kind of information in their pos-
session, namely President Pak’s approval for a particular Congress-
‘man’s proposal that Tongsun Pavk be permitted to handle Korean
lobbvine, anticipated use of Park’s rice sale commission to.finance
-the lobbying effort, and the Congressman’s personal solicitation of
campaign funds from President Pak. Accordinely. the officers sought
headquarters’ permission to brief the Ambassador and to assure him
-that all information which was forwarded to headauarters was heing
passed on to high-level officials at the Department of State. Head-

e Dr. Kissinger does not recall seeing this information and there is no State Department
record concernine these reports. These reports are among the twentr-three missing dis-
_tribnted documents. see p. 15. fn. 3. supra, and the Committee has thus heen unable to
:;fﬂrmine, from notations which might appear on these reports. who might have read
-them. .
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quarters replied that the -information in question was not being
passed on to State Department officials, and further, that the Am-
bassador should not be briefed.

Some of the available information was not reported to headquarters
by intelligence officers and was not discovered until a scarch of over-
seas intelligence offices was conducted as the result of current investi-
gations conducted by the Department of Justice and committees of
the Congress. Other information, while forwarded to Washington,
was not included in the intelligence reports which were prepared for
dissemination. On one’ oceasion, information which was handled in
this manner and which identified Tongsin Park as being completely
under the control of a particular IXCIA officer was sent in by the field
as “(a)n interesting sidelight not included in the intelligence report.”

13. Although, over a span of several years, much of the information
about Korean activities was forwarded to the analytic component of
the intelligence commumity, no analysis of the information was ever
done and none was ever sought by U.S. policymakers.

The absence of any thorough analysis o1 compilation of all avail-
able information may have been due to the fact that no requirement
was ever issued for information about Korean lobhying. One overseas
intelligence officer informed the Committee staff that he could recall
1o other case where the information he was reporting had met with
such deafening silence at headquarters. Although on one occasion in
1971 the Director of Korean Affairs at the Department of State ex-
pressed his concern to intelligence officers about “the entire ROKG
lobby efforts here via Tongsun Park, Radio Free Asia, the Cultural
and Freedom Foundation” and expressed “a need to gather informa-
tion on * * * the entire ROKG lobby here, through Investigation,”?
this expression was not.considercd to constitute a.“requirement”. be-
cause of the level at which it was communicated, and at any rate, was
considered to be the responsibility of the FBI rather than a task for
thé foreign intelligence community.? ‘ : :

Moreover, as indicated earlier, even on the single occasion when a
document which was called an intelligence summary was prepared—
in 1971 when the State Department urged an FBI investigation of
Tongsun Park and Radio of Free Asia—the only documents which
were summarized were those which had-been specifically identified by
the Department of State. Intelligence material which had been sup-
plied to the Department of State by other intelligence agencies, and
even some of the State Department’s own information was not in-
cluded; no file search was conducted to pull together other relevant

- information; and current intellizgence on the same subject was not
included, but was forwarded to FBI Headquarters as separate inde-
pendent items. Those separate items were never forwarded to the
FBI’s own investigators who were handling the case. '

14. Ewen though the Department of State was nerer provided with
o analysis or summary of wnhat the WOTA. Tonasun Pavle, and. the
Korean government were doing, officials of the State Deportment did
receive individual intelligence reports about some of the lobbying

7 Precisely the opposite position was taken by the FBI when the Radio of Free Asin
Investigation was closed in early 1972. Burean agents at the time recommended that “anv
logieal investigation * * * should be initiated in Seoul in the form of monitorine ROFA
brondcasts and determining activities and ROK government connections with KCFF and
ROFA personnel there.”



19

plans during 1970-1972. Several. complaints were made by officials
of the Department of State to the K orean government in late 1970
and early 1971 about Korean lobbying. Those protests did not address
the fact that the activities were being directed by South Korea’s intel-
ligence service, and there is no record that any definitive gotion was
taken to halt the intensified efforts which were reported in 1972.

In October of 1970, the U.S. Ambassador to South Korea, William
Porter, discussed the subject of “Korean lobbying in Washington”
with the Korean Foreign Minister and with the Korean Prime Min-
ister. He told the latter about the “circular note” which was then being
drafted by the Department of State on the subject which would urge
all foreign embassies in Washington to “stay within bounds,” 8 Porter
also told the Prime Minister that “the best thing for the Koreans is to
ride along on the residual good will in Washington toward the ROKSs
and stop sending amateurs to lobby on behalf of that organism here.”
Porter specifically mentioned Tongsun Park as one of the people,
among others, he had in mind and added that “People involved in such
activity outside the Embassy in Washington are amateurs and harming
the ROK cause.” The State Department’s Director of Korean Affairs
also met several days later with the Political Counselor from the
Korean Embassy, expressed his concern about Korean lobbying in the
United States, also mentioned the proposed circular note and expressed
his particular concern about the activities of Radio of Free Asia.

In November of 1970, Ambassador Porter again raised the subject.
this time with President Pak, in an effort to “enlist [President Pak’s]
support in restraining Korean lobbyists in Washington” which Porter
described as “creating irritation” and “counter-productive.” A few
months later Porter also asked the KCIA Director to try to restrain
Tongsun Park, but reported that it had apparently “not had effect.”

Unilateral action with respect to Tongsun Park was taken by Philip
Habib when the latter succeeded William Porter as Ambassador to
South Korea. Park’s free-wheeling activities, including his arranging
for congressional visits to South Korea (meetings were often arranged
for the Congressmen with Korean officials without U.S. Embassy
involvement), had long been a source of irritation to several officials
of the Department of State. One such official once even urged arrang-
ing for Park’s “recall to Korea”, prophesying that Park’s activities
“gooner or later are bound to get him and the ROKG into serious trou-
ble, and would jeopardize all we have been attempting to accomplish
with Congress.” Ambassador Habib specifically instructed all members
of the U.S. Embassy staff to have absolutely no contact with Park.

15. A full-scale investigation was finally undertaken in 1975 when
the President directed State Department officials to deliver a collection
of mew information to the then Acting Attorney General,? and an
inwestigation was begun by the Department of Justice. In February
1975, Assistant Secretary of State Habib brought to Dr. Kissinger’s

sThis is the note which is discussed at p. 7, supre which was proposed but never

sent.

9 This submission too, was not complete in that it contained only information which had
been reported by one agency in the intelligence community. Not included was extensive and
more detailed information describing Korean ‘“‘cover action” and “influence operations”
which had been reported by another agency on the same subject. It is the Committee’s
understanding, however, that Federal investigators have since been given access to all
relevant information in the possession of all the agencies.
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attention new information which had been received by U.S. intelli-
géence reflecting “extra-legal” Korean efforts to influence Members of
ongress.

D§. Kissinger consulted with President Ford, and asked Habib for
more complete information on the subject. In late October 1975, Mr.
Habib received and provided Dr. Kissinger more precise information.
on the same subject. Dr. Kissinger again consulted with the President,.
who directed that the information be transmitted to the Acting Attor-
ney General.® It was so transmitted in mid-November 1975.

16. The Committee has discovered no evidence that Tongsun Park’s
relationship with U.S. intelligence officers or other Executive Branch
officials affected the collection or reporting process or resulted in the
U.S. Government’s failure to halt the activities of Park or the KCIA.

The Committee has examined the question of whether Tongsun Park-
ever had a relationship with any U.S. Government officials that might.
have affected their actions in this case. Park had met Dr. Kissinger, At-
torney General Mitchell, Attorney General William Saxbe, CIA Di--
rector Richard Helms and Defense Secretary Melvin Laird on social
occasions. One one occasion he had lunch with FBI Director J. Edgar
Hoover in the office of Congressman John Rooney, and on at least one
occasion he met Secretary Laird in the latter’s office. However, there is
no evidence that any of these contacts had any bearing upon any action.
taken or not taken by any of these officials with respect to Korean
lobbying in the United States.

Mr. Park also knew former Attorney General Richard Kleindienst:
and met with him in Kleindienst’s office on one or two occasions; ho--
ever, their discussions occurred subsequent to the time when Mr.
Kleindienst authorized the closing of the investigations of Park and
Radio of Free Asia and there is no evidence those discussions involved’
U.S. Government action with respect to Park’s activities on behalf of’
South Korea.™ '

The Committee has also examined whether Tongsun Park had a
relationship with any of the U.S. intelligence agencies that would have:
influenced intelligence collection and reporting, or resultant govern-
ment action. The Committee has determined that although Park did
have some limited contact with U.S. intelligence personnel, he was
never considered by U.S. intelligence agencies to have been an asset,
and he never had any formal relationship with any of those agencies.
There is no evidence indicating that Park’s limited contacts with U.S.
intelligence officers ever had an effect upon the performance of these
officers or the agencies they represented.

Beginning in 1959 and for several years thereafter, U.S. intelligence
officers met with Park on occasion to obtain information and/or to
assess him as a prospective asset. In 1962, there was also intelligence
interest in the possibility of Park’s heading up a New York City place-

10Tn 1977 a newspaper column contained an allegation that in October 1975. when the
House Intelligence Committee was openly considering contempt proceedings against Ad-
ministration officials, ‘“Congressmen were warned about -Administration knowledge of
illegal payments * * *” {nvolving Members of Congress. The Committee has found no
evidence to substantiate this allegation.

1 After Mr. Kleindienst left the Department of Justice, he occupied space in Park’s
office building on a rent-free basis for twe months. During that time Kleindienst served
as Park’s attorney for two months for a retainer of $4.000. There is no evidence that
these relationships had been planned or discussed until after Mr. Kleindienst authorized
the closing of the Park/ROFA investigation. Mr. Kleindlenst has told the Committee that
his relationship with Park in 1971 was not such as required him to disqualify himself
from the case, and we have discovered no evidence to the contrary,
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ment service' for Korean students studying in the United States who
desired employment in their homeland. Although this particular or-
ganization was never created, Park was involved in some of the nego-
fiations which resulted in a $1,500 Asia Foundation grant to an
organization in Korea which was also involved in student placement
opportunities. Park has testified that he was unaware at the time that
the Asian Foundation was in any way connected with the CIA,*? and
there is no evidence to refute his claim. )

Tn 1967, Washington intelligence officials were told by their overseas
officers that Park was thought to be “worthy of cultivation” and Park
himself was apparently told that a Headquarters official would be call-
ing on him and might want to see him occasionally. The suggestion was
made that Park might be of interest because of his close relations with
key Korean officials. There is no indication in intelligence files that this
proposal was ever acted upon, although two years later an intelligence
officer who had just retired did in fact contact Park and arranged a
private dinner gathering which was attended by two other intelli-
gence officials. It was Park’s recollection that the dinner was arranged
by an intelligence officer who had been asked “to look me up.” There 1s
conflicting evidence whether the dinner took place in Park’s home or
in a Washington restaurant. It was apparently followed by a “tour”
of the George Town Club. The Committee has been unable to ascertam
why the dinner was arranged, and there are no records on the sub-
ject in intelligence agency files. One of the officers who was at the
dinner was en route to a new assignment in Saigon and asked Park to
let him know if he learned of any Congressmen who might be coming
to visit there. Intelligence files reflect Park’s subsequent efforts to
contact one of the officers concerned, but, according to the officer, “I
never returned his calls.”

Additional interest in Park was expressed by another intelligence
agency which, in 1968, was apparently considering recruiting Park as
a “spotter assessor” to be used to recruit and assess possible sources of
foreign intelligence information, but there is no evidence that Park
was actually used in that capacity.

During the period 1970-71, Park apparently had numerous contacts
with the CIA station chief in Seoul, although their recollections differ
as to the substance of their relationship. Park considered the station
chief to have been a close personal friend and he claims that they ex-
changed considerable substantive information about Korean politics
and political figures. The station chief recalls their meetings to have
been of a purely social nature rather than substantive. There are no
records in intelligence files reflecting what transpired between them.
Park recalls receiving a case of liquor from the station chief on at
Jeast one occasion.

Park’s activities in the United States first came to the attention of
the intelligence community in 1962 when one of the domestic com-
ponents reported that Park and his Georgetown roommate, Douglas
Caddy, were forming “a new and hopefully potent international anti-
communist youth organization,” called the International Federation of
Free Youth. The intelligence officer who reported this information
noted that his source, a close associate of Park, had not asked for sup-

12 The Asia Foundation was funded by the CIA from 1951 to 1967.
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port or guidance, but had passed the information along because U.S.
Intelligence “should be informed of this type of activity from the
beginning.” Although the intelligence officer told his superiors he
would “appreciate an expression of interest in pursuing the develop-
ment,” there is no indication in intelligence files that any further ac-
tion was taken. Although U.S. intelligence funded various student
organizations during the 1960s, there is no indication that this par-
ticular organization was ever ntilized in any fashion by U.S. intelli-
gence. Moreover, relevant intelligence components lave informed the
Committee that they have never had any relationship with Mr. Caddy.
~ The same intelligence source which provided information about the
International Federation of Free Youth was questioned several years
later about the George Town Club and. Park’s involvement in the Club.
There is no indication of what generated this later intelligence interest
in that subject, nor is there evidence of any response to the intelligence
officer’s request to be notified by his superiors if there were intérest in
access to Park through the source. Intelligence files do reflect that at
about this time a proposal was made; but rejected, to utilize the George
Town Club as-an operational base. : |
“The Committee has also ascertained that two former intelligence
officers had business relationships with Park, one while he was still
employed by U.S. intelligence and in fact in his “cover” capacity.
Nevertheless there is no indication that Park was aware that the in-
telligence officers were or had been so employed, and no evidence that
their relationships with Park had any efféct upon the intelligance
agencies’ performance to Korea. , '
In his testimony before the Senate Ethics Committee, Park readily
admitted to knowing several former intelligence officials, but the Com-
mittee has discovered no evidence that any of those relationships af-
fected the handling of the Korea case. o
Despite the. contacts, both witting and unwitting, that Park had
withi intelligence agents from time to time, there is no evidence that he
was ever asked (or that any intelligence officers who were in touch
with him were ever asked to find ont about) the nature'and extent of
his activities on behalf of the government 6f‘South Korea, ’



RECOMMENDATIONS AND CONCLUSIONS

(1) There should be a standing requirement for overseas national
intelligence agencies of the United States to attempt to ascertain the
extent and nature of all foreign intelligence service activities in this
country.

(2) To the greatest extent possible, the FBI should be kept fully
and currently informed about the identities and assignments of all
foreign intelligence officers assigned to the United States.

_ (3) The Executive Branch should establish policy guidance which

insures adequate coverage of “friendly” foreign intelligence officers

_stationed in the United States, consistent with FBI authority and

gith'rights guaranteed by the Constitution and laws of the United
tates.

The Committee is aware from the Korea case that foreign govern-
ments might also seek to improperly influence U.S. Government of-
ficials through the utilization of “agents” who might not always be
specifically or easily identifiable as intelligence officers. Investigations
of such “agents” who might be citizens of the United States and whose
activities do not violate United States law pose significant constitu-
tional problems. The Committee is not recommending the investigative
targeting of such individuals. Nevertheless, it is clear that consider-
ably more attention must be given to this problem by both the Execu-
tive Branch and the Congress to devise a means to insure that the use
of non-intelligence personnel by foreign governments is carefully
controlled. ,

(4) The FBI should devote greater resources to their counterintel-
ligence effort in order to be able to counter the threats posed by both
hostile and “friendly” foreign intelligence services. ‘

(5) The Director of Central Intelligence should insure that all
intelligence information which is received concerning foreign intelli-
gence activities in the United States is analyzed, assessed, and trans-
mitted promptly to the FBI, the Secretary of State, and the Special
Assistant to the President for National Security Affairs.

(6) The FBI and the Department of State should clarify their
respective responsibilities concerning the activities of foreign intelli-
gence services in the United States.

(7) The DCI and the Attorney General should continue the re-
cently initiated practice of notifying the intelligence committees of
Congress in the event Members of the House of Representatives or
the Senate or their staffs have been targeted by a foreign intelligence
service.

(8) United States intelligence relationships with the Republic of
Korea are not based upon any agreements which would have per-
mitted the objectionable activities which the KCIA conducted in the
United States. Moreover, when the United States Government is able
to learn of such activities, it has the option to thwart them, albeit at
some risk to our own intelligence and foreign policy interests.

(23)
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The Committee is concerned that U.S. Government officials should
appreciate the full range of actions open to the United States Gov-
ernment to deal with the problems raised by activities of friendly
foreign intelligence services in the United States.

The Committee is also concerned that whatever may have prompted
Korean intelligence officers to believe that they could operate with
impunity in the United States is probably no different from concep-
tions—or misconceptions—which serve as the basis for every nation’s
intelligence activities all over the world. We cannot address this kind
of case merely from the perspective of whether foreign agents should
be permitted to buy United States foreign policy. The issue is much
more fundamental than that. It requires awareness that the KCIA.
was operational in this country as long ago as 1963 and consideration
of whether any operations other than liaison should have been, or
should be, acceptable. And the complexity of resolving that issue re-
quires acknowledgement of our own intelligence activities on foreign,
including South Korean, soil, intelligence activities which are of great
benefit to the United States.

- If-we wish to prevent future cases of improper activities by friendly
foreign intelligence services in the United States, but conclude that
an -outright ban would unduly restrict our own operations abroad,
.then ave should try to fashion some method of governing these inter-
national practices. That effort has never before been made, and it
would be naive to believe that the United States could unilaterally
promulgate standards for the conduct of friendly foreign intelligence
services. It-is the Comnnittee’s judgment that the United States Gov-
-ernment, in consultation with our friends and allies, might want to
try to establish agreed, formal or informal limits on the types of
‘activities conducted within each other’s territory. Although inter-
national agreements could not reasonably be expected to prevent
activities which, in their very essence, are intended to be secret and
undetected, at least there is the possibility that the potential for possi-
ble abuse could be lowered. In addition, the United States Government
should considér the-selective use, in cases of clearly unacceptable ac-
tivities, of unilateral actions which would make clear the limits on the
-types .of activities by friendly foreign intelligence services in the
“United States which will be-tolerated by this country. . o



